
HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE

Monday, 10 August 2015 6.00 pm Committee Room 1, City Hall

Membership: Councillors Gary Hewson (Chair), Pat Vaughan (Vice-Chair), 
Bob Bushell, Jackie Kirk and Keith Weaver

Lincoln Tenants Panel 
member(s):

Colin Herbert, Debbie Rousseau, Eric Jenkinson and Brian 
Botham

Officers attending: Democratic Services, Bob Ledger, Karen Talbot and Chris Morton

A G E N D A

SECTION A Page(s) 

1. Confirmation of Minutes - 22 June 2015 3 - 8

2. Declarations of Interest 

Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary.

3. LTP Matters 

4. Performance Monitoring Report 9 - 16

5. Draft Annual Report to Tenants 17 - 38

6. Work Programme 2015-16 39 - 42





Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee 22 June 2015

Present: Councillors Councillor Gary Hewson (in the Chair), 
Bob Bushell, Jackie Kirk, Pat Vaughan and Keith Weaver

Apologies for Absence: Colin Herbert and Debbie Rousseau

Also in Attendance: Eric Jenkinson and Brian Botham

1. Confirmation of Minutes - 9 March 2015 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2015 be confirmed.

2. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were received.

3. LTP Matters 

Eric Jenkinson advised of the following LTP matters:

 informed there had been no problems carrying out the void property visits 
between 13 April 2015 and 1 June 2015.

 reported that LTP work groups were progressing well.

 updated members of the housing visit to take place on 23 June 2015.

 advised that LTP were interested in attending a Welfare Benefits event at 
Trafford Hall in July 2015.

4. Performance Monitoring Report 2014/15 

Bob Ledger, Director of Housing and Community Services (DHCS):

a. presented the report “Performance Monitoring Report 2014/15”.

b. advised that in total there were 22 measures and of these 10 were on or 
exceeding targets for the year and 11 measures had not met the targets 
set.  There was 1 measure where we did not have any data available.

c. gave an overview of the background of the report as detailed at paragraph 
3 of the report.

d. referred to Appendix A of the report and summarised the performance 
targets and actual achievements; for comparison purposes each indicator 
showed performance for the last year, target for current year and (where 
applicable) progress made in the current year by quarter for the following 
areas:

o voids average regarding re-let periods
o repairs
o complaints and MP letters responded to in time
o average days to resolve Anti-social behaviour



o expenditure against target set for year – responsive 
maintenance.

o percentage of calls answered on time

e. invited members questions and comments.

Members made the following questions and comments and received the relevant 
response.

Question How much more work would be required for the Servitor system to be 
operational?
Answer Work was still required to embed the Servitor system across the 
authority and ensure that the correct information was input. The appointment to 
the temporary post would oversee the vast majority of this work.

Members of the committee discussed the difficulties when raising complaints on 
behalf of constituents. Members raised concern over the lack of feedback 
received from officers, although the query had usually been resolved members 
were not made aware of this, or the outcome. Bob Ledger (DHCS) agreed that 
this was unacceptable and more had to be done to improve the communication 
between officers and elected members. Officers also needed to ensure they were 
ensuring they were keeping members of the public up to date with their enquires. 
Bob Ledger (DHCS) informed members that a corporate benchmarking target 
would be set for ‘people management’.

Members discussed how the corporate complaints procedure worked, the 
timescales that should be expected and how these effected the performance 
targets.
Members raised concern over the repairs performance targets. Bob Ledger 
(DHCS) reported that low performance targets where due largely to a number of 
problems on the system were jobs had been kept ‘live’ and a number of repeat 
appointments had been logged as individual jobs. The Servitor project would 
make a big difference to these figures when operating.

Question Do we notify tenants if repairs are going to be delayed?
Answer When we know there will be delays, or need for repeat appointment we 
would notify our tenants.

Question Would the ‘Lincoln Standard’ be complied with to ensure quality on 
repair works?
Answer Yes, we are proposing adoption of a new Lincoln Standard. Part of the 
proposal would to include electric showers in every Council property along with 
other improvements.

Question Could we implement a text service to residents to let them know of the 
status of repairs appointments?
Answer Yes, a text service had been used, however it required more work before 
it could be used as the main way of informing tenants.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report and members comments be noted.

5. Performance Targets Report 2015/16 

Bob Ledger, Director of Housing and Community Services:



a. presented the report “Performance Targets Report 2015/16”.

b. advised that this report set the performance indicators for 2015/2016 in 
relation to the Council’s Landlord services. These were set out in appendix 
A of the report.

c. highlighted that the voids average re-let period for all dwellings should be 
shown as; Actual 2014/15: 42 days, Target 2015/16: 28 days.

d. reported that these targets had already been taken through the Lincoln 
Tenants Panel (LTP).

e. invited members questions and comments.

RESOLVED that the contents of the be noted.

6. Complaints - 2014/15 

Bob Ledger, Director of Housing and Community Services:

a. presented the report “Complaints – 2014/15”.

b. advised that paragraph 4.1 of the report showed the total number of 
complaints that had been received by Housing throughout 2014/15.

c. informed that 4.2 showed which service areas had received complaints.

d. further informed that 4.3 showed what types of complaint had been 
received.

e. reported that 4.5 showed the complaint decision outcomes. Over 50% of 
which the Council upheld the complaint.

f. highlighted that an evaluation survey was sent anyone following a 
complaint submission. The satisfaction results of these surveys were 
shown in paragraph 4.6.

g. invited members questions and comments.

Members made the following questions and comments and received the relevant 
response.

Question Should we now begin to see a downward trend in the number of 
complaints we receive?
Answer Bob Ledger (DHCS) advised that the his PA was the nominated officer to 
deal with Housing complaints giving a centralised service that could keep the 
director up to date, whilst ensuring complaints were dealt with in a timely manner.

Question Brian Botham (LTP) inquired what the ‘inconclusive’ category meant, 
with regards to complaint outcomes in 4.5 of the report?
Answer This category was introduced within the last financial year and should 
only be used as a last resort for complex and time consuming issues when an 
outcome would not be known within the 10 days to answer the complaint.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report and members comments be noted.



7. Tenancy Fraud Strategy Progress Update 

Andrew Staton, Tenancy Services Manager:

a. presented the report “Tenancy Fraud Strategy Progress Update”.

b. informed that the tenancy fraud strategy had been approved by the 
Executive in December 2013 and was scheduled to be fully implemented 
by the end of 2016.

c. reminded members of the most common types of tenancy fraud and the 
problems the Council faces locally in Lincoln.

d. advised that recent legislation had been passed that meant sub-letting a 
property without living there would be against the law. Further advised that 
the Council’s tenancy policies would be updated to reflect this.

e. drew members attention to point 6 of preventing tenancy fraud from the 
attached appendix. Highlighted that it had been agreed by the Executive 
for the Director of Housing and Community Services to have delegated 
powers over “Tenancy Verification Services”.

f. reported that there had been a delay implementing the Tenancy Fraud 
Strategy, due to increased priority place on collection of rent arrears and 
some staffing resource issues.

g. invited members questions and comments.

Members made the following questions and comments and received the relevant 
response.

Question If a Lincoln resident was registered on our housing waiting list but then 
decided to move to a private rented flat, would their details be destroyed and 
removed from the system.
Answer Yes, all details would be removed from the system.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report and members comments be noted.

8. Draft Work Programme 2015-16 

Ben Culling, Democratic Services Officer:

a. presented the draft work programme for the Housing Scrutiny Committee 
for 2015/16 as detailed at Appendix A of the report.

b. advised that this was an opportunity for the committee to suggest other 
items be included within the work programme.

The committee agreed to include the following to be scrutinised on the meeting 
due to be held on 10 August 2015:
 

 Tenant involvement and empowerment strategy update.
 LTP half-yearly report.



The committee agreed that the “Shortfall of the St Botolph’s Modernisation 
Project” be bought to a future meeting when a report had been prepared.  

RESOLVED that:

i. the work programme be noted and updated to include the above.

ii. that a report be prepared to discuss the “Shortfall of the St Botolph’s 
Modernisation Project” and be scheduled on the work programme at a future 
meeting.





HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE  10 AUGUST 2015 

SUBJECT: PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT – 2015/16 

REPORT BY: BOB LEDGER
DIRECTOR – HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

LEAD OFFICER: PAULA BURTON
HOUSING QUALITY & PERFORMANCE TEAM LEADER

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee with an end of quarter report on 
Performance Indicators for the first quarter of year 2015/16 (April 2015 – June 
2015).  See Appendix A.

2. Executive Summary
 

2.1 This report combines all performance relevant to Housing Landlord issues.

2.2 In total there are 22 measures and of these 15 are on or exceeding targets for the 
year and 2 measures have not met the targets set.  There are 5 measures that do 
not have any data available.

3. Background

3.1 Over the last five years the Council has been working with the Lincoln Tenant’s 
Panel to improve external scrutiny and to meet the standards for resident 
engagement implemented by the Homes and Communities Agency.

3.2 All social landlords are required to have local offers in place alongside the national 
standards as set out in the new Regulatory Framework for Social Housing. The 
Framework was amended with effect from April 2012 but the principles remain the 
same. Local offers are local commitments to service standards as agreed with 
tenant representatives.

4. Main Body of Report

4.1 Appendix A attempts to simplify the overall analysis by listing performance on a 
service functional basis (rents, repairs etc) and then showing the source of the 
indicator (reason).

4.2 For comparison purposes each indicator shows performance for the last year, 
target for current year (where applicable) and progress made in the current year.

4.3 Appendix A shows which targets have been met and those where we have not 
achieved our target. There has been an overall improvement in performance in 



most areas during the first quarter.  Particular areas to highlight are:

Voids

Performance has shown an overall improvement. Appendix A highlights that an 
average general needs property not requiring major works had a void turnaround 
time of just under 17 days which is half of the average time taken during the last 
financial year.  This and other improvements has resulted in a void loss of 0.87% 
for the quarter.

Complaints & enquiries

During 2014/15, 77.4% of complaints were replied to within the 10 day target time 
and so far this year 96.49% have been replied to within the target time.  Significant 
improvement has also been demonstrated with Councillor and MP enquiries with 
96.67% of enquiries replied to within timescale in comparison to 70% for the 
previous year.

The following summary provides a brief explanation of reasons where we have 
not achieved our targets:

Average days to resolve ASB

This is a difficult area to predict and the target has been based on previous figures. 
In reality each case has to be treated on its own merits so performance is expected 
to fluctuate.  Although 123 days to resolve a case is outside of the target of 90 
days, it demonstrates an improvement from the 153 days that we performed at 
during the previous year.  A number of long standing cases were closed in April so 
will have affected the average number of days for this quarter.

Percentage of offers accepted first time

During the first quarter 82.14% of offers were accepted on the first time compared 
to the 85% target.  However, performance has consistently improved during the 
quarter with performance for June standing at 93.48%.  In order to continue to 
improve performance in this area applicants are being contacted prior to being 
offered a property to ensure that they have all relevant information.  This appears 
to be having some success.

5. Strategic priorities
 

5.1 Improve the performance of the Council’s Housing Landlord Function

There continues to be a strong commitment to improving the quality and efficiency 
of the service and this is a key aim in the 2015/16 financial year.

6. Organisational Impacts 

6.1 Finance 



The performance reported in this report are all, currently, being delivered within the 
existing budget. 

7. Recommendation 

7.1 Members are asked to note and comment on:

a) The current performance outcomes during the financial year 2015/16 ;

b)    A commitment to continue reporting on a quarterly basis and to determine a 
programme to have more interim in depth reviews of service specific 
performance.

Key Decision No

Key Decision Reference 
No.

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply

No

Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which Rule 
15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply?

No

Does the report contain 
Appendices?

Yes

List of Background 
Papers:
Lead Officer: Paula Burton, Housing Quality and Performance Team 

Leader Telephone 873572

.





LANDLORD SERVICES – PERFORMANCE 2015/16 APPENDIX A

Figures in brackets are the standalone quarterly figure. 

Reference Description Actual 
2014/15

Target 
2015/16

2015/16 
Q1

2015/16 
Q2

2015/16
Q3

2015/16 
Q4

Commentary

Rents
125A % of rent collected as a 

percentage of rent due
97.5% 100.00% 99.42% On target.

126 Arrears as a % of rent debit 3.28% 2.75% 2.90% On target.

Voids
69 % of rent lost due to vacant 

dwellings
1.09% 0.90% 0.87% On target.

58 Average re-let period – General 
needs (excluding major works)

33.9 days 23 days 16.75 days Better than target.

61 Average re-let period – All 
dwellings (including major works)

41.01 days 28 days 25.28 days Better than target.

Allocations
85A % of offers accepted first time 86.0% 85% 82.14% Below target.

Repairs
32 % of all repairs carried out within 

time limits
90.3% 95% Data to 

follow
Data to follow.

29 % of all emergency repairs carried 
out within time limits

93.6% 99.5% 99.64% On target.

33 Average time taken to complete 
repairs

21 days 20 days 15 days Better than target.

37 Repair appointments kept against 
appointments made (%)

82% 90% 95.92% Better than target.

41 Tenant satisfaction with repairs 98.2% 95% 97.8% Better than target.
34 Complete repairs right on first visit. No data 75% No data No performance or financial data 

is currently available. This should 
be resolved in the second half of 
the year as the Servitor system is 
further embedded.



Reference Description Actual 
2014/15

Target 
2015/16

2015/16 
Q1

2015/16 
Q2

2015/16
Q3

2015/16 
Q4

Commentary

Decent Homes
50 % of non-decent homes 0.46% 2% 5.44% On target.
48 % of homes with valid gas safety 

certificate
99.9% 100% 100% On target.

Complaints
22 % of complaints replied to in 10 

working days
77.4% 95% 96.49% Better than target.

22A&B Councillor enquiries & MP Letters 
replied to within time

70% 95% 96.67% Better than target.

ASB
89 % of ASB cases closed that were 

resolved
92.1% 94% 94.68% On target.

90 Average days to resolve ASB 
cases

152 days 90 days 123 days Below target.

Other
Expenditure against target set for 
year – responsive maintenance

111.04% 100% Data to 
follow

Figure not yet available.

Expenditure against target set for 
year – capital programme

102.37% 100% Data to 
follow

Figure not yet available.

Estate 
Services

Satisfaction with communal areas 90% 84% No data 
available.

Survey planned for later in the 
year.

Customer 
Contact

% of calls answered within 60 
seconds

66% 80% No data 
available.

Data is not available as there 
have been problems with the 
migration of the phone system 
onto one server (from four).  
System has crashed numerous 
times and reliable statistical data 
will not be available for Quarter 1. 
We are in the process of 
uploading a number of system 



Reference Description Actual 
2014/15

Target 
2015/16

2015/16 
Q1

2015/16 
Q2

2015/16
Q3

2015/16 
Q4

Commentary

updates, a major one is 
scheduled for 03/08/15, this will 
solve some of the issues with the 
phones restarting, it is unlikely to 
end “silent calls” which are also 
affecting some of the statistics.  
As long as the updates go in as 
planned and work we are hopeful 
of producing statistics again from 
Q3.

Customer satisfaction with the 
overall service

85% 88% by 
2014

88% On target
This is a biannual survey which 
was carried out in 2014.





HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE DATE: 10 AUGUST 2015

SUBJECT: DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT TO TENANTS 2014/15

DIRECTORATE: DIRECTORATE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES

REPORT AUTHOR: CHRIS MORTON - RESIDENT INVOLVEMENT MANAGER

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 This report sets out the details of the annual report to tenants 2014/15 as required 
by the Homes and Communities Agency, the regulator for social housing in 
England.

2. Executive Summary

2.1 There is a requirement by the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) to produce 
and submit an annual report to tenants by 1 October each year. The annual report 
to tenants 2014/15 sets out performance from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015. It 
must be developed in consultation with tenants and in accordance with the 
guidance set out by the HCA. The draft report is shown in appendix one. 

3. Background

3.1 The annual report must contain performance information relating to the council’s 
landlord function and how the council has met the HCA’s regulatory standards. 
These are: 

 Tenant Involvement and Empowerment
 Home
 Neighbourhood and Community
 Rent
 Tenancy. 

3.2 This year’s annual report has again been developed in consultation with tenant 
representatives through the Lincoln Tenants Panel.

3.3 The draft report has been discussed at housing services team meetings on 16 
June 2015 and 21 July 2015, as well as LTP meetings on 10 June and 08 July. 
Following the meetings, the draft annual report has been updated to take into 
account feedback and comments made.  

4. Content of the annual report to tenants 2014/2015

4.1 The main content of the report compares the council’s performance information 
between 2013/2014 -2014/15 and performance against set targets (e.g. rent 



4.2

arrears collection, repair times etc). 

This year’s report also includes a number of achievements made by tenants and 
the council in 2014/15. This section so far includes:

 The Gaunt Street community garden project
 The reduction in rent arrears  
 Achievement of the APSE award for the ‘most improvement direct labour 

organisation’
 The new build programme for council housing.

4.3 The report also mentions some of the ways in which the council intends to improve 
services for tenants in 2015/16. 

5. Next steps 

5.1 Once final amendments have been made the annual report will be submitted to the 
designer for a final draft to be produced. The delivery date for the report is 
currently scheduled for the week commencing 14 September 2015.

6. Organisational Impacts 

6.1 Finance 

There are no direct financial implications as a result of the annual report to 
tenants.

6.2 Legal Implications 

There are no legal implications.

6.3 Equality, Diversity & Human Rights 

There are no direct equality, diversity or human rights implications as a direct 
result on the annual report to tenants, however the report is designed with a 
minimum text of 11pt and copies can be supplied in alternative formats e.g. large 
print, different languages. 

7. Risk Implications

7.1 1. Not publishing (and sharing with the tenants and leaseholders) the annual 
report to tenants by the deadline of 1 October 2015.

2. Failure to deliver a good quality and honest annual report to tenants by the 
deadline could lead to reduction in tenant satisfaction with services.

8. Recommendation 
8.2 Members are invited to comment on the draft annual report to tenants and put 

forward amendments.



Key Decision No

Key Decision Reference 
No.

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply

No

Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which Rule 
15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply?

No

Does the report contain 
Appendices?

Yes

List of Background 
Papers:                                             None

Lead Officer: Chris Morton, Resident Involvement Manager, telephone 
873398.





Draft

APPENDIX A
Draft Annual report to tenants 2013/14-V5

Foreword

Welcome to this year’s annual report to tenants, which sets out how we have 
performed as your landlord in 2014-2015.

This report has been put together jointly by the council and tenant 
representatives on Lincoln Tenants Panel. 

This annual report is our report to you on the outcome of our previous year 
and what the priorities are proposed to be for the future. We made some key 
changes in 2014/15 which will see our service to you improve. There is more 
we want to do to make our service to you, our customer, as responsive as we 
can. Elsewhere in this report you will find figures on how many properties we 
let and how many repairs we did, amongst other things, and in some 
instances how we compare with social sector landlords elsewhere in England 
in undertaking those activities. We want to do better on some of these 
performance issues and this will be the focus of our effort in the coming 
months and years.

Whilst we are running the normal housing service we also have a number of 
substantial additional projects to undertake as well. We are spending more on 
your homes than we’ve ever done before and we have plans to increase that 
still further. In addition, we are proposing to spend more on the environment 
around people’s homes which is key to making people feel satisfied with the 
area they live in. 

You will also see, elsewhere in this report that we’re proposing to install 
electric showers in all homes that don’t currently have one. Please respond to 
the consultation and tell us whether you agree this should be a priority and 
what other matters you think are a priority for investment. We are also 
proposing to put non-slip flooring in all designated elderly persons’ 
accommodation as a way of trying to prevent falls within the home and 
contribute towards keeping people fit and healthy. Also proposed for elderly 
persons accommodation are lever taps in the kitchen and bathroom that are 
easier to use for those suffering with arthritis.  Again, please tell us on the 
consultation form enclosed with this report whether you agree with these 
investments.

Our current largest single projects are the £1.3m upgrade that we are 
undertaking at St Botolphs Court in Lincoln to upgrade and modernise the 
bedsits there, the £3.2m heating and insulation upgrade to the Shuttleworth 
House high rise block and the £2m project to put 20 bungalows on 5 ex 
garage sites in Birchwood. All three projects are evidence of the council's 
commitment to offer local people a better housing situation - warmer, more 
cost efficient and modern homes. 

I hope you find this report interesting. 



Draft

Bob Ledger 
Director of housing and community services

Councillor Peter West
Housing portfolio holder

TBC
Chair of the Lincoln Tenants Panel

Our vision

Our vision is that:

‘All Lincoln residents can have a decent, suitable home which they can 
afford in a community where they want to live, with the support they 
need to live independently.’

What’s it all about?

The Homes and Community Agency (HCA) sets out national housing 
standards that social landlords are required to meet. Each section of our 
report sets out the standards that we measure ourselves against. We also tell 
you how well we are doing compared to other social landlords.

We involve our tenants in scrutinising our performance and tenants can 
challenge any aspect of our service and make recommendations about how 
we can improve things.

We also publish our service standards and local offers that we have agreed 
with you on our website.

This year’s highlights

Some of this year’s highlights include:

 Won an APSE award for most improved repairs service
 Constructed a community garden at Gaunt Street
 Reduced rent arrears. 



Draft

Lincoln Anti-Poverty Strategy

Protecting the poorest people in Lincoln remains one of the council’s priorities. 
We do this is through our Lincoln Anti-Poverty Strategy which has seven 
objectives:

 Making the move into work easier
 Helping with the cost of raising a child
 Breaking the link between poor health and poverty
 Making sure older people get the services they need
 Improving the condition of people’s homes
 Working in a joined up way
 Helping people maximise their income.

Sometimes we all need a helping hand

This year we are running a Helping Hand campaign that aims to show people 
who might need money, benefits or debt advice where the organisations are 
that they can get help from. Throughout the summer, advice cards will be 
available to pick up at all GP surgeries in the city and pharmacies across the 
city. 

If you need advice and support on money issues, please contact any of the 
local organisations below.

For benefits advice
City of Lincoln Council – 01522 881188
Citizens Advice Bureau – 03444 111 444

For debt and budgeting advice
Christians Against Poverty – 0800 328 0006

For budgeting and savings support
Lincolnshire Credit Union – 01522 873550

For signposting to general help and advice
Lincs 2 Advice – 0300 

How we have assessed our performance

We have included information about how we have assessed our performance, 
including local offers and service standards.



Draft

The chart below shows you cost compared to performance for each area of 
activity. If an area of activity is missing from the chart, it is because we do not 
have all the information required for that area of activity.

Insert housemark chart 

1 Responsive repairs and empty property works
2 Rent arrears and collection
3 Anti-social behaviour

Average number of days taken to resolve ASB cases - ALL 

Percentage of anti-social behaviour cases resolved successfully 

4 Major works and cyclical maintenance
5 Lettings
6 Tenancy management
7 Resident involvement
8 Estate services

 2014-15
Our Result 151.60
Upper 66.60
Median 89.00
Lower 143.50

 2014-15 
Our Result 92.11
Upper 97.72
Median 93.22
Lower 85.99



Draft

Some of the things that have we done for you in the last year, include:

Carried out 34353 repairs

Answered 43396 housing helpdesk calls 

Installed 125 new bathrooms

Dealt with 279 cases of anti-social behaviour.

Tenant involvement and empowerment, customer choice and 
complaints

‘All Lincoln council tenants and leaseholders can have an influence in shaping 
housing services through a range of involvement opportunities in partnership 

with the council.’

 To ensure that all tenants are able to participate at a level that suits 
them while recognising the needs of special interest groups

 To co-ordinate and monitor effectively different methods and areas of 
involvement so that tenants can be involved in delivering high 
standards of service

 To keep all tenants informed to ensure that information is 
comprehensive, customer approved, in plain language and is timely

 To effectively use tenant feedback to improve service delivery and 
meet customer needs

 To provide sufficient resources to make tenant involvement effective.

The HCA says we should:

 Provide choices, information and communication that is appropriate to 
the needs of our tenants

 Have a complaints process that is clear, simple and accessible and 
which resolves your complaints promptly, polite and fairly

 Enable you to influence decisions and set service standards
 Develop and agree local offers of service with you
 Involve you in developing our annual report to tenants.

What you can expect from us

We will:

 Answer your enquiries professionally
 Notify you of changes in our housing officers
 Listen to your views and seek to improve our services



Draft

 Consult and involve tenants and leaseholders about decisions affecting 
the management of homes

 Deal with you politely and treat you with respect. 
 Aim to resolve complaints efficiently and effectively to your satisfaction.

What we expect from you

We would ask you to:

 Treat all staff politely, courteously and with respect
 Provide any information we ask you for when we ask for it or as soon 

as possible

Last year we:

 Re-launched the tenant empty property inspector programme 
 Supported two tenant led service reviews
 Were re-inspected for our Customer Services Excellence Award and 

retained this. 

Facts

We received over 43396 calls about general housing issues. Last year, we 
received 230 housing complaints of which 118 were either fully upheld or 
partially upheld.

Lincoln Tenants Panel 

The Lincoln Tenants Panel (LTP) is a group of tenants from across the city. 
Their aim is to ensure that tenants’ views are taken into account and monitor 
our performance. This is to help make sure we are providing an excellent 
service for you. 

Last year our tenants panel:

 Restructured to allow more effective monitoring and scrutiny of the 
council’s performance

 Put in place procedures to ensure all new LTP members are elected

 Introduced a governance paper to ensure they have a vision and 
achieve outcomes

 Agreed a plan for monitoring the Housing Revenue Account service 
delivery plan

 Discussed all housing related executive reports and made comments 
on these 



Draft

 Introduced a training programme and one-to-ones for members

 Attended training where members gained the first part of a level two 
scrutiny qualification 

 Under took and achieved the National Tenants Organisation 
accreditation. 

This year the Lincoln Tenants Panel will:

 Seek to increase its membership
 Comment on all housing related executive committee reports to ensure 

tenants’ views are taken into account when the council makes decision 
s

 Scrutinise the council’s performance on empty properties and dealing 
with anti-social behaviour 

 Continue with their training programme to develop the knowledge and 
skills of their members. 

Urgently needed-LTP members- vacant seats on the Lincoln Tenants 
Panel

We still have some vacant seats on the Lincoln Tenants Panel in the following 
areas:

TBC

If you would like to represent your area on the Lincoln Tenants Panel please 
contact us on 873333 or email us at customer.services@lincoln.gov.uk

What we said we 
would measure

How did we do 
2013/14?

How did we do 
2014/15?

How we rate our 
service

Answer 
telephone calls 
within 30 seconds

65 per cent 66 per cent Below target of 
80 per cent 

See visitors at the 
contact centre in 
20 minutes

10 minute 
average waiting 
time 

11 minute 
average waiting 
time

Good

Answer 
complaints within 
10 working days

85 per cent 77 per cent Below the target 
of 85 per cent



Draft

Tenant led service reviews 

Last year the council supported us in carrying out two ‘tenant led scrutiny 
reviews.’ This is the first time tenants have undertaken reviews and we chose 
two topics to look at. These were garden maintenance and the customer 
experience of allocations.

The reviews took nine months to complete and involved us looking at policies, 
reviewing performance data and talking to staff. From this information, we 
were able to put forward to a number of recommendations for service 
improvement. These included:

 Housing officers being equipped with garden cards to offer tenants 
advice on gardens

 Providing better information about garden boundaries when tenants 
move into properties

 The Lincoln Tenants Panel should monitor complaints about dumped 
rubbish 

 Providing more seating for customers waiting and ensure that it is 
suitable for the elderly and those with disabilities.

We enjoyed carrying out the reviews and found the experience gratifying. The 
council has agreed to implement the above recommendations in 2015/2016. 
Next year we plan to review:

 The customer experience of repairs
 Incentive schemes to encourage under occupying tenants to downsize 

to a smaller home.
 
Look out for the results of these reviews in the Home! magazine in early 2016. 

Designated tenants panel 

The designated tenants panel was set up to assist in resolving complaints 
made against us. Tenants are able to ask for a review of their complaint after 
they have been through our complaint procedure. The idea is for the panel to 
seek a resolution for the tenant, without the need to go to the ombudsman.  
This year the panel reviewed two complaints.  These were:

 Complaint one- complaint regarding repair-the council’s decision was 
upheld 

 Complaint two-improvements/rechargeable repairs-part of the 
complaint was upheld in favour of the council and part of it was sent 
back for further investigation. 



Draft

What are we doing to improve our tenant involvement service?

This year we will:

 Increase the number of residents groups across the city
 Carry out a further two tenant led service reviews on under-occupation 

and repairs
 Set up a Facebook page to allow us to engage and consult with a wider 

range of tenants
 Seek greater involvement from leaseholders.

Home standard

The HCA says we should:

 Make sure your home meets the decent homes standard or above
 Provide a cost effective repairs and maintenance service which offers 

choices to tenants
 Complete repairs right first time
 Make sure that your home and any communal areas meet all health 

and safety legislation.

What you can expect from us:

 Ensure that all our properties will remain at the decent homes standard
 Provide all tenants with information on the future programme of works
 Keep appointments for repairs
 Complete repairs right first time
 Prioritise repairs for customers who are vulnerable.

Last year we:

 Constructed a community garden on Gaunt Street
 94 per cent of our properties met the Decent Homes Standard 
 Replaced decoration vouchers with decoration packs
 Carried out 34,353 repairs
 Installed 120 new kitchens, 125 new bathrooms and  335 new boilers
 Received praise from the health and safety executive about of gas 

safety arrangements. 



Draft

‘You said, we did’- The Lenton Green illuminations

‘You said, we did. 

“We would like extra lighting at Lenton Green. Currently part of the scheme is 
unlit and this makes it difficult to walk down the path in the winter. This is of 
particular concern for many of the elderly residents who have trouble seeing”-
the Lenton Green residents’ group.  

Installed extra lighting. Two of the council’s partners, Kiers, carried this out 
and Aaron Services carried out the work  

Facts

We spent £10,670,812 improving your homes. 

What we said 
we would 
measure

How did we 
do
2013/14?

How did 
we do 
2014/15?

How we rate 
our service

Average repair 
cost per 
property per 
week

£20 £20

All repairs? 
carried out 
within timescale

95 per cent 90 per 
cent

Emergency? 
repairs 
completed on 
time

95 per cent 94 per 
cent

Average 
number of days 
to complete a 
repair

12 days 21 days

Tenant 
satisfaction with 
repairs 
surveyed after 
work complete

99 per cent 95 per 
cent

Met target of 
95 per cent 

Getting repairs 
right first time

66.5 per cent No data 

Keeping 
appointments 
first time

86 per cent 82 per 
cent 

Below target 
of 85 per cent 

Homes with a 
gas safety 
certificate as at 

100 per cent 100 per 
cent

On target



Draft

31 March 2015
Homes that 
don’t meet the 
decent homes 
standard

2 per cent 0.46 per 
cent

Exceeded 
target of 3 per 
cent 

What are we doing to improve our home service?

This year we will:

 Consult with you about fitting electric showers in homes that don’t 
currently have one 

 Consult with you about fitting lever taps for elderly tenants and those 
with arthritis

 Carry out work to improve the environment on the estates
 Complete the first phase of the new build programme to build five new 

bungalows on Birchwood
 Improve Shuttleworth House to upgrade the heating system by 

installing a bio-mass boiler, new windows and cladding
 Complete the modernisation project at St Botolphs Court
 Carry out a stock condition survey on 20 per cent of our homes
 Improve our repair service by getting a higher per cent of jobs right first 

time.

Tenancy standard

The HCA says we should:

 Let our homes in a fair, transparent and efficient  way
 Take into account the needs of tenants and make the best use of 

homes available
 Develop and provide services that will support tenants to maintain their 

tenancies
 Support tenants who want to move through our mutual exchange 

scheme
 Offer tenancies that meet legal requirements.

What you can expect from us

We will:

 Provide comprehensive housing advice
 Carry out lettings in accordance with our allocations policies
 Provide information on our anticipated waiting times for property types
 Provide new tenants with information on their new home and provide a 

new tenants handbook
 Let our empty homes as quickly as we can



Draft

 Ensure all our properties meet our empty homes lettings standard 
before you move in

 Signpost new tenants to other support agencies.

Last year we:

 Launched a new tenancy agreement
 Carried out 31 empty home inspections between October and March.

Facts

Last year we re-let 606 of our properties and carried out 121 mutual 
exchanges. 

What we said 
we would 
measure

How did we 
do 2013/14?

How did we 
do 2014/15?

How we rate 
our service

Average time to 
re-let a property

35 days 34 days Below the 
target of 20 
days

Offers accepted 
first time

84 per cent 86 per cent Exceeded 
target of 75 
per cent 

Meet the empty home inspectors  

In October 2014, we re-launched the empty home tenant inspectors team. 
There are 10 inspectors who take it in turns to carry out inspections of empty 
council properties. Every Friday, I meet with the council’s voids team and 
select two properties to inspect the following week, our aim is to check 10 per 
cent of all properties let.  The inspectors will then meet a council officer at the 
property and carry out the inspection. When carrying out these checks, we 
judge the house or flat against the ‘empty property letting standard.’ This 
involves checking for cleanliness, general condition and that that all rubbish 
has been removed.  We record our scores and submit these back to the 
council. Between October 2014 and March 2015 we carried out 31 
inspections. The results were:

 23 properties scored green
 8 properties scored amber
 0 properties scored red. 

This is an independent check and helps to make sure that the council lets 
homes in a decent condition.  During our inspections, we noticed that many 
window handles were broken and as a result the council now checks for these 
faults.



Draft

I am proud of the work that the team has done the team and believe we have 
worked well with the council to help ensure that tenants receive excellent 
service. 

What are we doing to improve our tenancy service?

This year we:

 Implement our equitable tenancy agreement policy
 Put into place a new mutual exchange policy to take into account the 

bedroom tax.

Neighbourhood and community standard

The HCA says we should:

 Keep your estate and communal areas clean and tidy
 Work with you and other organisations to make your neighbourhood a 

better place to live
 Work with the police and other organisations to tackle anti social- 

behaviour.

What you can expect from us:

We will:

 Provide you with a supportive response which is consistent and keeps 
you informed of progress

 Regularly clean and maintain all communal areas to a high standard
 Work with tenants to ensure they uphold the terms of their tenancy
 Hold an annual programme of estate inspections and carry out estate 

improvements.

Last year we:

 Commenced a review of how we deal with anti-social behaviour
 Worked with residents to design and build a community garden at 

Gaunt Street
 Funded a project officer to keep Britain Tidy.



Draft

Facts

Last year we dealt with 279 cases of anti-social behaviour. This resulted in 
five tenants being evicted for causing anti-social behaviour.

-We sent out 123 warning letters and carried out 144 interviews with 
perpetrators and issued a closure order at a property. 

What we said 
we would 
measure

How did we 
do 2013/14?

How did we 
do in 
2014/15?

How we rate 
our service

Closed cases 
of anti-social 
behaviour that 
were resolved

89 per cent 92 per cent Ahead of 
target of 
90per cent 

Average 
number of 
days to 
revolve cases 
of anti-social 
behaviour

98 days 152 days No target set 
in 14-15. 

80 days target 
for 15-16.

Improving services

We take reports of anti-social behaviour seriously and always want to improve 
how we deal with incidents. To demonstrate this commitment, last year we:

Formed an anti-social behaviour focus group

We invited tenants who had experienced anti-social behaviour to come and 
talk to us about how they felt we could improve our responses. The tenants  
told us that:

 We don’t always give out clear advice on how long it will take to resolve 
a complaint or what will happen next

 There isn’t a way to report ASB through the council’s website
 Information provided in council leaflets and on the council’s website 

about ASB is poor
 Staff should carry out an assessment at the first point of contact to 

detriment the seriousness of the complaint.

We will consider this feedback and use it to review our approach to dealing 
with anti-social behaviour. 

Hermit Street security improvements 

Following incidents of anti-social behaviour, the residents of Hermit Street 
contacted the council to askfor help.  We met with the residents and decided 
to install gates around  Hermit Street. 



Draft

Customer 
service

How did we 
do 2013/14 
survey?

How did we 
do in 
2014/15?

How we rate 
our service

Satisfaction 
with the 
overall estate 
services

90 per cent Did not carry 
out survey.

What are we doing to improve our neighbourhood and community 
service?

This year we will:

 Look at applying for anti-social behaviour accreditation 
 Look into re-generating parts of Birchwood
 Put into place a new anti-social behaviour policy that is in line with new 

legislation 
 Carry out a risk assessment when you report anti-social behaviour.

Rent

The HCA says we should:

 Set our rent in line with government guidelines

What you can expect from us?

We will:

 Provide advice on whether you may be able to receive assistance with 
your rent

 Help you to complete a housing benefit claim form
 Ensure that we do everything to prevent you from falling into arrears
 Give you four weeks notice of any rent increase
 Provide you with value for money

Facts

Last year we collected £28,341,575.82 in rent.  That’s £445,750.33 more than the 
previous year or more importantly to you that could pay for:. 

 18 tenants were evicted for not paying their rent. (check figures) 



Draft

What we said 
we would 
measure?

How did we 
do 2013/14?

How did 
we do in 
2014/15?

How we 
compare to 
others

How we rate 
our service

Rent collected 
against rent 
due

100 per cent 97.52 per 
cent 

Met target set 
at 97.5 per 
cent 

Level of 
arrears 
against total 
rent due

3.36 per cent 3.28 per 
cent 

Upper quartile Met target set 
at 3.3per cent 

What are we doing to improve our rent service.

This year we will:

In November 2014, we asked a company called ‘BMG research’ to undertake 
an independent satisfaction survey. This is what you said:

Question 2010
 %

2012
%

2014
% Change since 2012

Satisfied with the overall service

% respondents satisfied 86% 88% 85% -3%

Satisfied with the quality of the home

% Satisfied 85% 90% 88% -2%

Satisfied with condition of property

% Satisfied 83% 86% 84% -2%

Satisfied with value for money for rent

% Satisfied 84% 78% 82% +4%

Satisfied with the neighbourhood as a place to live

% Satisfied 80% 81% 77% -4%

Made contact with CLC

% Contacted 65% 67% 80% +13%

Ease of getting hold of the right person

% Easy 62% 72% 78% +6%

Helpfulness of staff

% Helpful 79% 86% 85% -1%

Ability of staff to deal with the problem

% Able 78% 80% 79% -1%

Satisfied with final outcome of contact



Draft

% Satisfied 68% 78% 67% -11%

Satisfied with repairs and maintenance

% Satisfied 78% 85% 84% -1%

Satisfied that views are taken into account by CLC

% Satisfied 61% 67% 69% +2%

Keeping tenants informed

% Good 76% 79% 78% -1%

We are looking at ways to improve satisfaction in all areas that we work. 

30 Years in a council house 

In July this year, Mrs Rush a tenant of St Giles, celebrated a rather special 
anniversary, 30 years living in her council house.  

When did you move in?

I moved in on 1 July 1985, I have lived on the estate my entire life. My parents 
moved into a house on Coleridge Gardens when it was first built. 

What’s the best part about the area?

There is a big sense of community where I live, everyone helps each other 
and looks out for one another. For example, I make stew for my neighbours in 
the winter.

How have you seen the area change?

If I am honest, nothing has changed but I mean that in a good way. Plenty of 
people have come and gone over the years but everyone remains friendly and 
helps each other. 

 

 





HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 10 AUGUST 2015

SUBJECT: WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16

DIRECTORATE: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

LEAD OFFICER: CLAIRE TURNER, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To present Members with the work programme for 2015/16 (Appendix A).

2. Background

2.1

2.2

The work programme for 2015/16 is provided for information to ensure members 
are aware of the forthcoming business at future meetings of the Housing Scrutiny 
Sub Committee. The work programme is regularly updated in consultation with the 
chair of the committee and chair of Lincoln Tenants Panel.

The work programme includes those areas for scrutiny linked to the strategic 
priorities of the Council and housing matters, this was to ensure that the work of this 
committee is relevant and proportionate. 

3. Recommendation

3.1 That Members agree the work programme and recommend any necessary 
amendments.

Access to Information:
Does the report contain exempt 
information, which would prejudice the 
public interest requirement if it was 
publicised?

No

Key Decision No

Do the Exempt Information Categories 
Apply

No

Call In and Urgency: Is the decision one 
to which Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply?

No

Does the report contain Appendices? Yes

If Yes, how many Appendices? 1

Lead Officer: Claire Turner, Democratic Services Officer
Telephone 873619





APPENDIX A
Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee Work Programme – Timetable for 2015/16Item Person(/

3 22 June 20150 Comments

Item(s) Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ 
Comments

Quarter 4 2014/15 – Performance Summary This will be a summary 
report. 

Tenancy Fraud Andrew Staton

Target Setting Paula Burton Requested at March 
meeting

Complaints Paula Burton Requested at Novembers 
meeting

Work Programme 2015/16 Democratic Services Regular Report

10 August 2015

Item(s) Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ 
Comments

Quarter 1 (2015/16) – Performance Report Paula Burton Quarterly report
Annual Report to Tenants' Chris Morton

5 October 2015 - Annual Performance

Item(s) Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ 
Comments

Annual Performance reports on the following areas:
Direct Labour Organisation (DLO) - CMS Annual report
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Annual report
Housing Investment Programme (HIP) Annual report
Anti Social Behaviour Update Andrew Staton Requested at March 

meeting
Shortfall of St Botolph’s Modernisation Project Bob Ledger Requested at June 

meeting 



Tenant  Scrutiny Report Chris Morton Deferred from August 
meeting

Benchmarking Paula Burton If the data from the STAR 
survey is unavailable may 
need to be deferred to the 
next meeting (Deferred 
from August)

16 November 2015

Item(s) Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ 
Comments

Quarter 2 (2015/16) – Performance and Finance Report Paula  Burton Quarterly report
LTP Annual Report – Half Yearly Report Annual report
Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Strategy Update Chris Morton
LTP Report (Annual Update) Chris Morton

26 January 2016

Item(s) Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ 
Comments

7 March 2016

Item(s) Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ 
Comments

Quarter 3 (2015/16) – Performance Report Paula Burton Quarterly report
Housing Portfolio Holder Annual report

Items to be scheduled on the work programme


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 22 June 2015
	4 Performance Monitoring Report
	Appendix A  Q1 2015 16 performance

	5 Draft Annual Report to Tenants
	Appendix A - Draft Report to Tenants

	6 Work Programme 2015-16
	Appendix A - Work Programme 2015-16


